
A G E N D A 

GRANT COUNTY PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
Via Conference Call 

+1 509-703-5291 Conference ID: 287 686 505#
COMMISSION MEETING 
Tuesday, June 8, 2021 

An Executive Session may be called at any time for purposes authorized 
by the Open Public Meetings Act 

9:00 a.m. Commission Convenes 
Review and Sign Vouchers 

9:30 a.m. Reports from staff 

12:00 Noon Lunch 

1:00 p.m. Safety Briefing 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Attendance 
Public requests to discuss agenda items/non-agenda items 
Correspondence 
Business Meeting 

1. Consent Agenda

Approval of Vouchers

Meeting minutes of May 25, 2021

2. Regular Agenda

8966 – Resolution of the Commission of Public Utility District No. 2 of Grant County, Washington,
Providing for the Issuance of a Subordinate Lien Electric System Revenue Refunding Bond of the
District in the Principal Amount of not to exceed $50,000,000.00 to Refinance Certain Capital
Improvements to the Electric System; Providing the Form and Terms of the Bond; Authorizing the
Sale of the Bond; and Approving Certain Matters Related Thereto.

Motion authorizing the General Manager/CEO, on behalf of Grant PUD, to execute Change Order
No. 10 to Contract 230-08636 with IMCO General Construction, Inc., increasing the not-to-exceed
contract amount by $4,258,940.00 for a new contract total of $39,584,485.46 and resetting the
delegated authority levels to the authority granted to the General Manager/CEO per Resolution No.
8609 for charges incurred as a result of Change Order No. 10. (3363)



Motion authorizing the General Manager/CEO, on behalf of Grant PUD, to execute Interlocal 
Agreement (ILA), Contract 430-10913, between Grant PUD and Energy Northwest. (3364) 
 

3. Review Items For Next Business Meeting 
 

XXXX – A Resolution Declaring Certain Real Property Surplus to the Needs of the District and 
Authorizing Sale to the Chelan County Fire District No. 9 DBA Lake Wenatchee Fire and Rescue.   
 
Motion authorizing the General Manager/CEO, on behalf of Grant PUD, to execute Contract 430-
10967 with Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife (WDFW), in an amount not-to-exceed 
$3,492,599.00  and with a contract completion date of June 30, 2024. (xxxx) 
 
Motion authorizing the General Manager/CEO, on behalf of Grant PUD, to sign the Purchase and 
Sale Agreement with TG Downs, LLC, to acquire 88.06 acres of property in Quincy, Washington to 
allow for the Quincy Transmission Expansion Program (QTEP), in the amount of $5,723,900.00.  
(xxxx) 
 

4. Calendar 
 
5. Reports from Staff (if applicable) 
 
Adjournment 





23   
 
 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

OF PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 2 OF GRANT COUNTY 
 

May 25, 2021 
 

The Commission of Public Utility District No. 2 of Grant County, Washington, convened at 9:00 
a.m. via Microsoft Teams Meeting / +1 509-703-5291 Conference ID: 287 686 505# with the following 
Commissioners present:  Larry Schaapman, President; Judy Wilson, Vice-President; Nelson Cox, 
Secretary; Dale Walker, Commissioner; and Tom Flint, Commissioner.   

 
The Commission convened to review vouchers and correspondence.   
 
The Commission recessed at 9:17 a.m. 
 
The Commission resumed at 9:30 a.m.   
 
A round table discussion was held regarding the following topics: Incident Criticality Level (ICL) and 

at-home antigen testing update; upcoming changes to paid administrative leave as related to COVID-19 
response; and a June 22 scheduling discussion.   

 
Nichole Bortle, Safety Coordinator, provided the Safety Report.  
 
John Mertlich, Senior Manager of FP&A, Bonnie Overfield, Senior Manager of Treasury and 

Jennifer Sager, Interim Senior Manager of Accounting, provided the Financial Statement Suite Report. 
 
The Commission recessed at 10:52 a.m. 
 
The Commission resumed at 11:00 a.m.   
 
A meet and greet was held with Energy NW and X-Energy executives Brad Sawatzke, CEO, 

Energy NW; Greg Cullen, Vice President of Energy Services and Development, Energy NW; Clay Sell, CEO, 
X-energy; and Darren Gale, Vice President & Executive Program Manager, X-energy.  

 
The Commission recessed at 11:46 a.m. 
 
The Commission resumed at 12:00 p.m. 
 
The Commission attended a virtual lunch meting with Grant County Commissioners.   
 
Consent agenda motion was made Mr. Walker and seconded by Mr. Cox to approve the 

following consent agenda items: 
 

Payment Number 111294 through 111731 
 

$17,747,616.69                
 

Payroll Direct Deposit 177729 through 178464 
 

$1,996,219.60                  
 

Payroll Tax and              
Garnishments 

20210520A 
 

through 20210520B 
 

$873,520.47                     
 

 
Meeting minutes of May 11, 2021. 
 
After consideration, the above consent agenda items were approved by unanimous vote of the 

Commission and signatures were affirmed. 
 
Resolution No. 8965 relative to amending the Strategic Plan was presented to the Commission.  

Motion was made by Mr. Flint  and seconded by Mr. Cox to approve Resolution No. 8965.  After 
consideration, the motion passed by unanimous vote of the Commission. 

 



24   
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 8965 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING GRANT PUD’S STRATEGIC PLAN EFFECTIVE May 25, 2021 
 

R e c i t a l s 
 

1. On April 28, 2020, the Commission by Resolution No. 8941 amended Grant PUD’s Strategic Plan; 
 

2. The Strategic Plan is a living document that will be systematically reviewed every six months with 
the Commission.  During these sessions, the board will review progress made towards our goals and 
identify the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats facing the utility; 

 
3. Slight variations to the document are anticipated regularly and will be reviewed with the 

Commission.  When formal action is taken to revise the Strategic Plan, staff will propose those 
changes via formal resolution; and 
 

4. Grant PUD’s General Manager / CEO recommends adoption of a revised Strategic Plan dated  
May 25, 2021. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of Public Utility District No. 2 of 

Grant County, Washington, that Grant PUD’s Strategic Plan dated May 25, 2021 is hereby adopted and 
said Strategic Plan replaces and supersedes Grant PUD’s Strategic Plan dated April 28, 2020. 
 
  BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Resolution No. 8941 is hereby superseded. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the Commission of Public Utility District No. 2 of Grant 
County, Washington, this 25th day of May, 2021. 

 
Motion was made by Mr. Flint and seconded by Mr. Cox authorizing the General Manager/CEO, 

on behalf of Grant PUD, to execute Contract 430-10921 with the Washington Department of Fish and 
Wildlife (WDFW), in an amount not-to-exceed $1,136,055.00 and with a contract completion date of 
June 30, 2024.  After consideration, the motion passed by unanimous vote of the Commission. 

 
The Commissioners reviewed future agenda items. 
 
The Commission calendar was reviewed.  
 
Julie Pyper, Senior Manager of PMO, presented the PMO Report. 
 
Bonnie Overfield, Senior Manager of Treasury, gave the Bond Financing Report.  
 
Trade association and committee reports were reviewed.   
 
Commissioner Schaapman briefly reported on recent discussions with Grant County 

Commissioners regarding Crescent Bar.  
 
The Commission recessed at 2:45 p.m.  
 
The Commission resumed at 3:00 p.m. 
 
An executive session was announced at 3:00 p.m. to last until 4:00 p.m. to review performance 

of a public employee with legal counsel present pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(g).  The executive session 
concluded at 4:00 p.m. and the regular session resumed. 

 
There being no further business to discuss, the May 25, 2021 meeting officially adjourned at 

3:50 p.m.   
 
  
              
      Larry Schaapman, President 
 
ATTEST:      
        
             



25   
 
 

Nelson Cox, Secretary     Judy Wilson, Vice President 
 
 
  
             
Dale Walker, Commissioner    Tom Flint, Commissioner 
 





Junior Lien Bond Resolution 
Electric System Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2021-T 

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 2 OF 

GRANT COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

RESOLUTION NO. 8966

A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF PUBLIC UTILI1Y 
DISTRICT NO. 2 OF GRANT COUNTY, WASHINGTON, PROVIDING 
FOR THE ISSUANCE OF A SUBORDINATE LIEN ELECTRIC 
SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BOND OF THE DISTRICT IN THE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $50,000,000 TO 
REFINANCE CERTAIN CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS TO THE 
ELECTRIC SYSTEM; PROVIDING THE FORM AND TERMS OF THE 
BOND; AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF THE BOND; AND 
APPROVING CERTAIN MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

PASSED June 8, 2021 

PREPARED BY: 

PACIFICALAWGROUP LLP 
Seattle, Washington 



Section 1. 
Section 2. 

Section 3. 
Section 4. 

Section 5. 
Section 6. 
Section 7. 

Section 8. 
Section 9. 

Section 10. 
Section 11. 
Section 12. 

Section 13. 
Section 14. 

Section 15. 
Section 16. 
Section 17. 

Section 18. 
Section 19. 

Section 20. 

Junior Lien Bond Resolution 
Electric System Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2021-T 

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 2 OF 

GRANT COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

Resolution No. 8966 

Definitions ............................................................................................................... 2 
Findings ................................................................................................................... 8 
Authorization of Bond; Payment; Registration and Transfer ................................. 8 
Prepayment .............................................................................................................. 9 

Payment of the Bond; Security ............................................................................... 9 
Revenue Fund ....................................................................................................... 10 
Covenants .............................................................................................................. 11 

Additional Debt and Obligations .......................................................................... 14 
Tax Covenants ....................................................................................................... 16 

Events of Default .................................................................................................. 16 
Remedies ............................................................................................................... 18 
Sale of the Bond; Disposition of Proceeds ........................................................... 18 

Reporting Requirements ....................................................................................... 19 
Form of Bond ........................................................................................................ 19 

Execution of Bond ................................................................................................ 19 
Sale of Bond; Fees ................................................................................................ 19 
Authorization to Officials and Agents .................................................................. 19 

Changes in Accounting ......................................................................................... 19 
Corrections ............................................................................................................ 20 

Effective Date of Resolution ................................................................................. 20 

Exhibit A: Form of Bond 

* This Table of Contents is provided for convenience only and is not a part of this resolution.



RESOLUTION NO. 8966 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF PUBLIC UTILI1Y 

DISTRICT NO. 2 OF GRANT COUNTY, WASHINGTON, PROVIDING 
FOR THE ISSUANCE OF A SUBORDINATE LIEN ELECTRIC 
SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BOND OF THE DISTRICT IN THE 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $50,000,000 TO 
REFINANCE CERTAIN CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS TO THE 

ELECTRIC SYSTEM; PROVIDING THE FORM AND TERMS OF THE 
BOND; AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF THE BOND; AND 
APPROVING CERTAIN MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, Public Utility District No. 2 of Grant County, Washington (the "District") 
owns and operates an electric utility system (as further defined herein, the "Electric System") for 

the transmission and distribution of electric energy; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 54.16.070 provides that a public utility district may contract 
indebtedness or borrow money for any corporate purpose on its credit or on the revenues of its 

public utilities; and 

WHEREAS, the District has issued and has outstanding certain senior parity lien 

obligations of the Electric System described as follows (the "Outstanding Parity Bonds"); and 

Series 

Electric System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 -0 
(the "2017-0 Bonds") 

Electric System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020-Q (Taxable) 
(the "2020-Q Bonds") 

Electric System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020-R 

(Mandatory Put Bonds) (the "2020-R Bonds") 

Electric System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020-S 

(Mandatory Put Bonds) (the "2020-S Bonds") 

;and 

Authorizing 
Resolution No. 

8866 

8933 

8947 

8947 

WHEREAS, the resolutions authorizing the Outstanding Parity Bonds (the "Outstanding 

Parity Bond Resolutions") authorize the District to issue, from time to time, bonds and notes 
payable from and secured by a lien on revenues of the Electric System junior and subordinate to 

the lien thereon of the Outstanding Parity Bonds; and 

1 









































CERTIFICATION 

I, the undersigned, Secretary of the Commission of Public Utility District No. 2 of Grant 
County, Washington (the "District"), and keeper of the records of the Commission (the 
"Commission") DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

1. That the attached is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 8966 (the "Resolution") 
of the Commission, duly adopted at a regular meeting thereof held on the 8th day of June, 2021. 

2. That said meeting was duly convened and held in all respects in accordance with law, 
including but not limited to Washington State Governor Inslee' s emergency proclamation No. 
20-28 issued on March 24, 2020, as amended and supplemented, temporarily suspending portions 
of the Open Public Meetings Act ( chapter 42.30 RCW), and to the extent required by law, due 
and proper notice of such meeting was given; that a legal quorum was present throughout the 
meeting and a legally sufficient number of members of the Commission voted in the proper 
manner for the adoption of the Resolution; that all other requirements and proceedings incident to 
the proper adoption of the Resolution have been duly fulfilled, carried out and otherwise 
observed; and that I am authorized to execute this certificate.

Dated this 8th day of June, 2021. 

Secretary of the Commission of 
Public Utility District No. 2 of 

Grant County, Washington 



No. I 

EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF BOND 

[TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS] 

UNITED STA TES OF AMERICA 

STA TE OF WASHINGTON 

-----

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 2 OF GRANT COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BOND, SERIES 2021-T 

Maturity Date: ______ _ 

Registered Owner: 

Public Utility District No. 2 of Grant County, Washington, a municipal corporation of the 
State of Washington (the "District"), hereby acknowledges itself to owe and for value received 
promises to pay but solely from the Junior Lien Electric System Revenue Bond Fund (the "Bond 
Fund"), to the Registered Owner identified above the Principal Amount stated above. This bond 
shall bear interest at the SIFMA Index Rate, subject to the Default Rate upon the occurrence and 
during the continuation of an Event of Default until the date on which the Default ( each as defined 
in the hereinafter defined Purchase Agreement) is cured or otherwise waived by the Registered 
Owner. Interest on this bond shall be payable in arrears on the first business day of each calendar 
month and the Maturity Date or the date of prior redemption in whole ( each, an "Interest Payment 
Date"). Principal of this bond shall be payable at the Maturity Date, subject to prior redemption. 
Interest on this bond shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year for the actual number of 
days elapsed. 

This bond is issued under and in accordance with the provisions of the Constitution and 
applicable statutes of the State of Washington, District Resolution No. 8966 adopted on June 8, 
2021 (the "Bond Resolution"), and the Bond Purchase Agreement dated                  , 2021 
between the District and Bank of America, N .A. (the "Purchase Agreement"). Capitalized terms 
not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Bond Resolution and/or the 
Purchase Agreement, as applicable. 

This bond is a special obligation of the District and is payable solely from the Bond Fund. 
This bond has a lien on Gross Revenue junior to the payment of Operating Expenses of the Electric 
System and Parity Bonds of the Electric System and on a parity with any Additional Bonds. 
Reference to the Bond Resolution and the Purchase Agreement is hereby made for description of 
this bond, the funds applicable to the payment of this bond, the covenants and agreements of the 
District, including the conditions under which other obligations of the District may be issued. 

This bond shall not be deemed to constitute a general obligation or pledge of the faith and 
credit of the District or debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the State of Washington or any 

A-1









 
 
 
 
 Motion was made by ___________ and seconded by _____________ authorizing the General 
Manager/CEO, on behalf of Grant PUD, to execute Change Order No. 10 to Contract 230-08636 with 
IMCO General Construction, Inc., increasing the not-to-exceed contract amount by $4,258,940.00 for a 
new contract total of $39,584,485.46 and resetting the delegated authority levels to the authority 
granted to the General Manager/CEO per Resolution No. 8609 for charges incurred as a result of Change 
Order No. 10. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3363 



M E M O R A N D U M  May 10, 2021 
 
 
TO:   Kevin Nordt, General Manager/Chief Executive Officer 
 
VIA:   Richard Wallen, Chief Operations Officer 
  Ty Ehrman, P.E., Managing Director of Power Production  
  Dale Campbell, P.E., Senior Manager of Power Production Engineering  
  Brandon Little, P.E., Chief Dam Safety Engineer 
  Rebecca Simpson, Civil and Dam Safety Engineering Manager  
 
FROM:  Chris Steinmetz, Dam Safety Engineer 
 Vanessa Seldal, PMP, Project Manager  
 
SUBJECT:  Contract 230-08636, Change Order No. 010 
 
 
Purpose:   
To request Commission approval of Change Order No. 10 to Contract 230-08636 to approve a 
not to exceed total of $4,258,940.00 for an alternative rock source use and additional standby. 
   
Discussion:   
Contract 230-08636 was awarded to IMCO General Construction, Inc. on January 28, 2020.  The 
Contract was executed to construct a replacement dam for the far right (West) embankment at 
Priest Rapids Dam that would withstand the anticipated ground motions resulting from the 
Maximum Credible Earthquake.  At the time of Award, the District and Contractor anticipated 
issuing the Limited Notice to Proceed (LNTP) within 45 calendar days.  Unfortunately, the 
Department of Energy (DOE) required the District to include the replacement of their roadway in 
the project Environmental Assessment (EA) resulting in an EA amendment that needed to be 
approved by FERC. The final EA amendment has been received however a land use agreement 
with the Army was needed to secure the rock quarry.  The Army was not willing to provide 
permission until Grant PUD received Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)approval 
for the project. The Army had indicated that they would need 90 days after the FERC permission 
to provide a land use agreement.  After Grant PUD received the EA, and final FERC approval 
for the project, the Army’s timeline for providing permission changed drastically.  The current 
estimate for permission to use the Army’s rock quarry is now 16 months.  Due to this unrealistic 
timeframe, the potential risk of not receiving permission from the Army and a FERC mandate to 
address known dam safety issues on the Priest Rapids Right Embankment which is already 
behind schedule, moving to a commercial rock source and starting the Right Embankment 
repairs is the only viable way to proceed. 
 
Transitioning to a commercial rock will cost $3,288,500. Additionally, standby for the contractor 
expires June 16, 2021 and cost negotiations for restarting a large contract are underway but not 
expected to be finalized by June 16. As a result, the Contractor will be unavoidably delayed and 
entitles IMCO to delay costs under the contract. The additional standby time for up to 6 months 
will not exceed $970,440.   



 
Justification:   
Due to the updated estimate of 16 months for securing access to the Army’s rock quarry, 
potential risk that we may not receive Army permission and a FERC mandate to address known 
dam safety issues on the Priest Rapids Right Embankment which is already behind schedule, it is 
prudent to transition to a commercial source to get the Priest Rapids Right Embankment 
improvements started on a more reasonable timeline in order to address the Dam Safety concerns 
regarding embankment stability during a seismic event, reduce continued delay costs paid to the 
contractor and reduce prolonged construction impacts on the Wanapum People.  
 
Additionally, the District and IMCO have a need to extend delay cost to allow for restart 
planning and contract negotiations.  The highest priority is securing the rock needed for 2021 and 
keeping IMCO under contract by extending delay cost. 
 
Next the District will instruct IMCO to resume getting their subcontractors in place and the 
District and IMCO will negotiate costs.  Due to potential escalation in commodities those costs 
may require Commission approval in another change order.  Securing new subcontractors and 
negotiations will take 60-90 days. 
 
After all required agreements are in place, construction is anticipated to start late in Quarter 3 of 
2021. 
  
In accordance with the Contract, the Contractor is due compensation during the delay.  Since the 
length of the delay is currently unknown, the Contractor has provided weekly and monthly delay 
costs.  These delay costs have been occurring since March 16, 2020.  While the Contractor has 
been patient and cooperative, it is the responsibility of the District to promptly execute a Change 
Order allowing payment for delay.  Failure to provide timely delay payments could increase the 
District claim liability and will damage the relationship with the Contractor.  The District 
Representative has reviewed the delay payment and has found it to be fair and reasonable.  
 
The Contractors performance to date on the contract has been excellent.  The Contractor is 
collaboratively working with the District to mitigate the impacts of delay including continuing 
work on submittals and securing long lead items.  
 
Financial Considerations:   
While the costs associated with delay are large, they are far less than the likely increase from 
canceling and rebidding the contract.  It is unlikely that the District would secure pricing at the 
current Contract value in the event of a rebid. The anticipated increase in cost of rebidding the 
contract is $16,100,000. Rebidding would also result in additional delays.  This project is 
intended to mitigate a dam safety risk and needs to remain a priority. This option is not 
recommended. 
 
Pursuing the aggregate source through the Army would result in delay costs beyond those 
proposed in this change order.  The estimated delay cost is $2,911,300 higher than the delay 
costs under this proposed change order.  In addition to increased delay costs for pursing the 
Army aggregate source, cost increases with reengaging subcontractors are expected due to the 



additional delays. FERC has expressed strong interest in this project starting soon and we will 
face scrutiny if we choose to further delay the project when we have a valid path forward.  
Approval to use the Army aggregate source is not certain and we will end up forced to use the 
commercial aggregate source if approval by the Army is not granted. The District will continue 
working to secure the aggregate source with the Army. If permission is granted sooner than 
expected and a cost savings will be realized, the project will revert back to using the Army 
aggregate for RCC production. 
 
Change Order History:   
CO#1 –Revise GC-3 and SR-6 to allow procurement of specific long lead items (materials and 
equipment) in advance of the Limited NTP and NTP. Cost Change $0 
CO#2 - Revise GC-3 to allow Contractor to continue to place orders and enter into subcontracts 
during suspended work periods with prior DR approval, compensate Contractor for Standby 
Time, replace section GC-12 to allow payment for DR approved materials and equipment stored 
off-site, revise section GC-18 to add insurance coverage under Builder's Risk policy for 
materials and equipment stored off-site. Cost Change $661,685.40 
CO#3 – Replace section SR-6 Part D in it’s entirety to allow early procurement and delivery of 
RCC batch plant to District property and allow for remobilization costs to move RCC batch plant 
to project site after LNTP. Cost of Change $70,131.00 
CO#4 – Continued delay costs. Cost of Change $330,842.70 
CO#5 – Authorization for additional survey work to verify control monument elevations in 
NGVD 29’. Cost of Change $5901.00 
CO#6 – Continued delay costs. Cost of Change $388,284.72. 
CO#7 – Relocation of concrete batch plant. Cost of Change $97,673.92. 
CO#8 - Continued delay costs. Cost of Change $388,284.72. 
CO#9 – Removal of LNTP, Cost of Change $0. 
 
The total cost of this change order covers up to six additional months of standby time for IMCO. 
The costs include eight employees and vehicles dedicated to the PRREIP as well as dedicated 
office space, housing and insurance costs resulting from the delay.  Three of the IMCO 
employees are full time.  The other five employees are dedicated part time. Vehicle costs are 
charged proportionately to staff time and have been verified to be below blue book rates. 
 
Delay costs can be paid at a Monthly rate and the District has the ability to pro-rate as 
appropriate. 
 
Legal Review:  See attached email.   
 
Recommendation:   
Commission approval of Change Order No. 10 for a not to exceed amount of $4,258,940.00 to 
Contract 230-08636 in accordance with Letter from Contractor 26 dated 5/6/2021 and in response 
to District GC-3 Suspension of Work Letter issued 4/7/2020, and in accordance with Letter from 
Contractor 25A. Contractor and District negotiated the weekly and monthly delay costs and 
necessary contract changes to allow for reasonable contract items to continue during the delay. 













 
 
 
 
 
 Motion was made by ___________  and seconded by _____________ authorizing the General 
Manager/CEO, on behalf of Grant PUD, to execute an Interlocal Agreement, Contract 430-10913, 
between Grant PUD and Energy Northwest. 
 
 
 
 
 
3364 































 
 

RESOLUTION NO. XXXX 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY SURPLUS TO THE NEEDS OF THE 
DISTRICT AND AUTHORIZING SALE TO THE CHELAN COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT NO. 9 DBA 

LAKE WENATCHEE FIRE AND RESCUE 
 

R e c i t a l s 
 
1. RCW 54.16.180 authorizes the District to sell, convey, lease or otherwise dispose of all or any part of 

District property which has become unserviceable, inadequate, obsolete, worn out or unfit for 
District operations and which is no longer necessary, material to, and useful in such operation;  

 
2. The District owns real property described as follows: 
 

LOTS 1-10, BLOCK D, PLAT OF CASCADE GARDENS, CHELAN COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 62. 
 
EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION OF LOT 5, BLOCK D, CONVEYED TO THE 
STATE OF WASHINGTON BY DEED RECORDED OCTOBER 20, 1952 UNDER AUDITOR'S 
FILE NO. 464703 IN BOOK 495 OF DEEDS, PAGE 224. 
 
TOGETHER WITH THAT PORTION OF LOTS 1-7, BLOCK E, LYING NORTHERLY OF THE 
NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY NO. 2, ALL IN THE PLAT OF 
CASCADE GARDENS, CHELAN COUNTY, WASHINGTON, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS PAGE 62. 
 
AND EXCEPTING THEREFROM ALL THAT PORTION CONVEYED TO THE STATE OF 
WASHINGTON BY DEED RECORDED OCTOBER 20, 1952 UNDER AUDITOR'S FILE NO. 
464703 IN BOOK 495 OF DEEDS, PAGE 224. 
 
SELLER RESERVES A NON-EXCLUSIVE PEDESTRIAN ACCESS EASEMENT FOR THE WANAPUM 
PEOPLE OVER AND ACROSS LOT 1, BLOCK D PLAT OF CASCADE GARDENS, CHELAN 
COUNTY, WASHINGTON, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN VOLUME 2 OF 
PLATS, PAGE 62. 
 
Tax Parcel ID No. 261612515220 

 
3. The District’s staff and Manager have determined that the described District Property is no longer 

necessary to the District’s operations and that it would be in the best interest of the District to 
dispose of it by sale to Chelan County Fire District No. 9 DBA Lake Wenatchee Fire and Rescue;  

 



Resolution No. XXXX – Page 2 
 
4. The appraised fair market value of the District’s real property is $321,000.00; and 

 
5. RCW 39.33.010 provides that any municipality or any political subdivision thereof, may sell, transfer, 

exchange, lease or otherwise dispose of any property, real or personal, or property rights, including 
but not limited to the title to real property, to any municipality or any political subdivision thereof 
on such terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed upon by the proper authorities of the state 
and/or the subdivisions concerned. 

 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Commission of Public Utility District No. 2 of 
Grant County, Washington, as follows: 
 
Section 1:    That the District Property more fully described Recital 2 above has become inadequate, 

surplus to the District’s needs, is no longer useful to present or prospective District 
operations, and is hereby declared surplus to the District’s needs. 

 
Section 2: The District’s Manager is hereby authorized to execute such documents as may be necessary 

to effectuate, at the appraised fair market value (described in recital number 4 above) 
transfer of title to Chelan County Fire and Rescue DBA Lake Wenatchee Fire and Rescue. 

 
   PASSED AND APPROVED by the Commission of Public Utility District No. 2 of Grant 

County, Washington this _____ day of _________________, 2021. 
 
 
 
        
              
      President 
ATTEST: 
         
        
             
Secretary      Vice President 
  
 
  
             
Commissioner      Commissioner 
    
 

























 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Motion was made by ___________  and seconded by _____________ authorizing the General 
Manager/CEO, on behalf of Grant PUD, to execute Contract 430-10967 with Washington Department of 
Fish and Wildlife (WDFW), in an amount not-to-exceed $3,492,599.00  and with a contract completion 
date of June 30, 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
430-10967 









































































































Motion was made by __________ and seconded by ________authorizing the General 
Manager/CEO, on behalf of Grant PUD, to sign the Purchase and Sale Agreement with TG Downs, LLC, to 
acquire 88.06 acres of property in Quincy, Washington to allow for the Quincy Transmission Expansion 
Program (QTEP), in the amount of $5,723,900.00.   

xxxx 



































1 5/26/2021 1:31 PMCommission Meetings

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30

June 2021
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 31

July 2021June 2021

May 30 31 Jun 1 2 3 4 5
10:30am GM Forum Live

Event (Login details 
are provided below) -
Randalynn Hovland

6 7 8 9 10 11 12
9:30am Commission 

Meeting (Microsoft 
Teams) - Melissa 
Leonard

8:00am Sign Bond Docs 
(Randi's EHQ Office) -
Commission 
Meetings

12:00pm 1:1 
GM/Commissioners 
Lunch with 
Kevin/Larry 
(Microsoft Teams 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
12:00pm 1:1 

GM/Commissioners 
Lunch with 
Kevin/Tom (Microsoft
Teams 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26
12:00pm 1:1 

GM/Commissioners 
Lunch with 
Kevin/Judy (Microsoft
Teams 

9:30am Commission 
Meeting (Microsoft 
Teams ) - Melissa 

12:00pm Lunch with 
County 

27 28 29 30 Jul 1 2 3
12:00pm 1:1 

GM/Commissioners 
Lunch with 
Kevin/Dale (Microsoft
Teams 

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY



2 5/26/2021 1:31 PMCommission Meetings

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 31

July 2021
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

August 2021July 2021

Jun 27 28 29 30 Jul 1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10
8:00am HOLIDAY - 

Commission 
Meetings

12:00pm 1:1 
GM/Commissioners 
Lunch with 
Kevin/Nelson 
(Microsoft Teams 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17
9:30am Commission 

Meeting (Microsoft 
Teams) - Melissa 
Leonard

8:30am HOLD - 
Commission Strategic
Planning Meeting  
(HQ-Conf E; / Teams 
Meeting) - Randalynn

18 19 20 21 22 23 24

25 26 27 28 29 30 31
9:30am Commission 

Meeting (Microsoft 
12:00pm Grant PUD / 

Grant County 
12:00pm Lunch with 

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY



3 5/26/2021 1:31 PMCommission Meetings

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

August 2021
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30

September 2021August 2021

Aug 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

8 9 10 11 12 13 14
9:30am Commission 

Meeting (Microsoft 
Teams) - Melissa 
Leonard

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
1:00pm Financial 

Advisory Committee 
(FAC) (Judy and Dale) 
(Microsoft Teams 
Meeting/HQ-Conf E ; 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28
9:30am Commission 

Meeting (Microsoft 
Teams ) - Melissa 

12:00pm Lunch with 
County 

29 30 31 Sep 1 2 3 4

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY


	2021-06-08 Commission Meeting Agenda
	CONSENT Agenda page
	2021-05-25 DRAFT Commission Minutes
	REGULAR Agenda page
	Resolution 8966 Bond
	Resolution 8966 Bond_Memo
	Motion 3363 230-08636 CO 10 IMCO General Construction
	Motion 3363 230-08636 CO 10 IMCO General Construction_Supp Docs
	Motion 3364 430-10913 Interlocal Agreement with Energy Northwest
	Motion 3364 430-10913 Interlocal Agreement with Energy Northwest_Supp Docs
	Resolution XXXX Sale of Surplus Property
	Resolution XXXX Sale of Surplus Property_Supp Docs
	Motion xxxx 430-10967 Priest Rapids Hatchery Operation and Maintenance
	Motion xxxx 430-10967 Priest Rapids Hatchery Operation and Maintenance_Supp Docs
	Motion xxxx Land Acquisition for Quincy Transmission Expansion Program
	Motion xxxx Land Acquisition for Quincy Transmission Expansion Program_supp docs
	Commission Calendar



